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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

’,
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COMMISSION, | P I P N
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v {IV é R \’xi_l‘j fg:‘, > ‘
RAJIV VOHRA, SEAN HEALEY, YT 17 B
LANTERN INVESTMENTS, LTD., )
LIPTON HOLDINGS, LTD., )
AND BEAUFORT HOLDINGS, LTD.,, )
)
Defendants. )
)
COMPLAINT
It appears to Plaintiff, Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission"), and it alleges
the following:
OVERVIEW OF DEFENDANTS’ SCHEME
1. This case involves the perpetration of schemes by Defendants Rajiv Vohra
(“Vohra”) and Sean Healey (“Healey™) in 1997 and 1998 to defraud investors in connection with
New Directions Manufacturing, Inc. (“New Directions™) stock.
2. Vohra and Healey acquired free-trading shares of New Directions during 1997 and
1998 via both market transactions and private purchases.
3. From March through July of 1998, Vohra and Healey used wash transactions, i.e.,
transactions involving no change in beneficial ownership (the “wash trades™), to create the
appearance of active trading in New Directions stock.
!



Case 0:00-cv-07286-PAS Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 09/06/2000 Page 2 of 12

4

4, Vohra and Healey paid people to create a research report on New Directions that
was false and misleading. Vohra and Healey then published that report to the investing public by
various mediums, including the Internet.

5. While Vohra and Healey were promoting New Directions Stock to investors, they
were simultaneously selling their shares at a profit of over $500,000.

6. Vohra and Healey attempted to conceal their fraudulent scheme by conducting their
activities through Canadian brokerage accounts held in the names of Lantern Investments, Ltd.
("Lantern"), Lipton Holdings, Ltd. ("Lipton"), and Beaufort Holdings, Ltd. ("Beaufort").
Lantern, Lipton, and Beaufort are Bahamian companies controlled by Vohra and Healey.

7. By knowingly or recklessly engaging in this conduct, Vohra and Healey directly
or indirectly violated and, unless restrained, will violate the antifraud provisions of the federal
securities laws, specifically Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 ("Securities Act™") [15
(1.S.C. 77q(a)], and Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Act") [15

U.S.C. 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 [17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5] promulgated thereunder.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

8. The Commission brings this action pursuant to Sections 20(b) and 20(d) of the
Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77t(b) and 77t(d)], and Sections 21(d), 21(e), and 27 of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. 78u(d), 78u(e) and 78aa], to enjoin the Defendants from engaging in the transactions,
acts, practices, and courses of business alleged in this complaint, and transactions, acts, practices,
and courses of business of similar purport and object, for disgorgement of illegally obtained funds
and prejudgment interest, for civil money penalties, and other equitable relief.

9. The Defendants, directly and indirectly, made use of the mails, the means and

instruments of transportation and communication 1n interstate commerce, and the means and
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instrumentalities of interstate commerce in connection with the transactions, acts, practices and
courses of business alleged in this complaint.

10.  Certain of the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of business constituting
violations of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act have occurred in the Southern District of

Flonida. Defendant Vohra resides in the Southern District of Florida.

DEFENDANTS

11. Rajiv Vohra, age 47, resides in Fort Lauderdale, FI1.. He is a Canadian citizen, and
represents himself to be an investment banker.

12, Sean Healey. age 43. resides in Foxboro, MA. He represents himself to be an
investment banker and conducts business throngh his company, USA Capital, Inc.

13.  Lantern Investments. Ltd.. Lipton Holdings, Ltd., and Beaufort Holdings, Ltd. are

Bahamian companies (the “Bahamian entities”).

THE FRAUDULENT SCHEME

Vohra and Healey Acquire Shares
of New Directions

14. In 1997 and 1998, Vohra and Healey acquired control of at least 285.000 shares of
New Directions stock through private transactions and purchased additional shares through the

market. New Directions stock was publicly traded in the over-the-counter market.

e
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Vohra and Healey Create the Illusion of Active
Trading In New Directions Using Wash Trades

15.  Vohra and Healey attempted to create the false or misleading appearance of active
trading in New Directions stock through wash trades. These trades were carried out both through
accounts in Vohra's name and accounts in the name of the Bahamian entities controlled by Vohra
and Healey. Vohra’s accounts were located at Yorkton Securities Inc., Equitrade Securities, and
Merit Investment Corp. (now known as Rampart Securities, Inc.). The Bahamian entities” accounts
were located at Yorkton Securities Inc., Merit Investment Corp., and Dominick & Dominick, Inc.

16. During the period from March 3. 1998 to July 31, 1998, Vohra and Healey exccuted
at least twenty-six wash transactions of New Directions stock, with the intention of artificially
raising or maintaining the price of the stock and creating the appearance of active trading. The
quantities of shares involved in these wash transactions ranged from 5000 shares to 35.000
shares, while the average trading volume during this time period grew from 30,000 to 50,000
shares per day. These wash trades often constituted over 70% of the daily trading volume in
New Directions stock. Vohra and Healey purchased a total of 480.000 shares for $1.527,625 in
transactions executed at or near the time they werc selling identical or nearly identical quantities
that totaled 458,500 shares for $1,411,588.

17. These wash trades were entered for the purchase (or sale) of blocks of New
Directions stock, with the knowledge that orders of substantially the same size, at substantially
the same time, and at substantially the same price were being entered for the sale (or purchase) of
the securities. The transactions resulted in no change in beneficial ownership of the securities.
The wash trades artificially maintained the stock price while Vohra, Healey, and the Bahamian

entities were selling their shares.
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Vohra and Healey Promote New Directions Stock
To Investors While Simultaneously Selling the Stock

18.  In April of 1998, Vohra and Healey caused the name Eskew & Associates Financial
(“Eskew & Associates™) to be placed on a research report that promoted New Directions.

19.  The research report, as published, falsely stated that Eskew & Associates had issued
a strong buy recommendation on New Directions stock. In fact, Vohra and Healey knew, or
were reckless in not knowing, Eskew & Associates had not issued the strong buy
recommendation.

20.  The research report falsely claimed that New Directions had significantly expanded
through operations during the previous vear. Tn fact, Vohra and Healey knew, or were reckless
in not knowing, that New Directions had not expanded through operations during the previous
vear. but had in fact reported negative cash flow from operations.

21. In May 1998, Vohra and Healey published the research report on a web site called
SuperStockPick.

22. Vohra and Healey also published the research report by faxing it to broker-dealers.

23. The SuperStockPick web site falsely claimed that Eskew & Associates was an
independent equities research organization. In fact, Vohra and Healey knew, or were reckless in
not knowing, that Eskew & Associates was not an equities research organization, nor was it
independent.

24.  InJuly of 1998, Vohra and Healey republished the research report on their own web
site called Discount Trader. The Discount Trader web site also falsely claimed that Eskew &

Associates was an independent equities research organization.
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25.  During 1997 and 1998, Vohra and Healey paid approximately $2.2 million for New
Directions stock and sold that stock for $2.7 million of New Directions stock at a time when the
price was artificially maintained by their fraudulent conduct, thus profiting approximately
$500.000 from their fraudulent scheme.

COUNTII

FRAUD

Violations of Section 17(a)(1) of the
Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77q(a)(1)}

26.  Paragraphs 1 through 25 are hereby realleged and are incorporated hercin by reference.

27. During 1997 and 1998, Defendants Vohra, Healey, Lantern, Lipton, and Beaufort,
individually and in concert, in the offer and sale of securities, by the use of means and instruments
of transportation and communication in interstate commerce and by use of the mails. directly and
indirectly, employed devices, schemes and artifices to defraud purchasers of such securities, all as
more particularly described above.

28.  The Defendants knowingly, intentionally, and/or recklessly engaged in the
aforementioned devices, schemes and artifices to defraud.

29. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Vohra, Healev, Lantern, Lipton, and Beaufort
violated, and, unless restrained and enjoined, will continue to violate Section 17(a)(1) of the

Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77g(a)(1)].
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COUNT 11
FRAUD

Violations of Sections 17(a)(2) and
17(a)(3) of the Securities Act
(15 U.S.C. 77q(a)(2) and 77q(a)(3)]

30.  Paragraphs 1 through 25 are hereby realleged and are incorporated herein by reference.

31.  During 1997 and 1998, Defendants Vohra, Healey, Lantern, Lipton, and Beaufort, in
the offer and sale of securities, by the use of means and instruments of transportation and
communication in interstate commerce and by use of the mails, directly and indirectly:

(a) obtained money and property by means of untrue statements of material facts and
omissions to statc material facts necessary in order to make the statements made, in
the light of the circumstances nnder which they were made, not mislcading; and

(b)  engaged in transactions. practices and courses of business which operated and
would operate as a fraud and deceit upon the purchasers of such securities, all as
more particularly described above.

32. By reason of the foregoing, Defendants Vohra, Healey, Lantern. Lipton. and Beaufort
violated, and, unless restrained and cnjoined, will continue to violate Sections 17(a)(2) and (3) of

the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77q(a)(2) and (3)].
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COUNT HI
FRAUD

Violations of Section 10(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act

(15 U.S.C. 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5

Thereunder [17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5]

33.  Paragraphs 1 through 25 are hereby realleged and are incorporated herein by reference.

34. During 1997 and 1998, Defendants Vohra, Healey, Lantern, Lipton, and Beaufort, in
connection with the purchase and sale of securities, by the use of means and instrumentalities of
interstate commerce and by use of the mails, directly and indirectly:

(a) employed devices, schemes, and artifices to defraud,

(b) made untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state matcrial facts
necessary in order to make the statements made, in the light of the circumstances
under which they were made. not misleading; and

(c) engaged in acts. practices, and courses of business which operated as a fraud and
deceit upon persons, all as more particularly described above.

35. Said Defendants knowingly, intentionally and/or recklessly engaged in the above-
described conduct.
36. By reason of the toregoing, Defendants Vohra, Healey, Lantern. Lipton, and Beaufort

have violated, and, unless restrained and enjoined, will continue to violate Section 10(b) of the

Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5].
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission respectfully prays for:
L

Findings of fact and conclusions of law that the Defendants committed the acts and
violations alleged in this Complaint.

IL

A permanent injunction, restraining and enjoining Defendants Vohra, Healey, Lantern,
Lipton, and Beaufort, their officers, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and those persons in
active concert or participation with them who receive actual notice of the order of injunction, and
each of them. whether as principals or as aiders and abettors, from violating Section 17(a) of the
Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77q(a)]. Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 78j(b)]. and Rule
10b-5 [17 C.F.R. 240.10b-5] promulgated thereunder.

III.

An order requiring accountings by Defendants Vohra, Healey, Lantern, Lipton, and
Beaufort of the use of proceeds from the sales of the securities described in this Complaint, and an
order requiring the disgorgement by Defendants Vohra, Healey, Lantern, Lipton, and Beaufort of all
ill-gotten gains that result in any unjust enrichment. with prejudgment intercst, te effect the remedial
purposes of the federal securities laws.

Iv.

An order pursuant to Section 20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 77t(d)] and Section

21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. 78u(d)3)] imposing civil penalties against Defendants

Vohra, Healey, Lantern, Lipton, and Beaufort.

9
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V.

Such other and further relief as this Court may deem just, equitable, and appropriate in
connection with the enforcement of the federal securities laws and for the protection of investors.
Further, the Securities and Exchange Commission respectfully prays that the Court retain
jurisdiction over this action in order to implement and carry out the terms of all orders and decrees
that are entered or to entertain any suitable application or motion by the Commission for additional

relief within the jurisdiction of this Court.

DATED: August 31, 2000 RESPECTFUILT BMITTED,

¥ ﬂ

By: ) l/ JOK w VT
William P. Hicks
District Trial Counsel
Flonda Bar No. 337641
Direct Dial: (404) 842-7675
Emaitl: hicksw(@sec.gov

/Y/ﬁ

Stephen D. Councill

Staft Attorney

Georgia Bar No. 190358
Direct Dial: (404) 842-7619
Email: councills{@sec.gov

Attorneys for Plaintift

Securities and Exchange Commission
3475 Lenox Road, N.E., Suite 1000
Atlanta, Georgia 30326-1232
Telephone: (404) 842-7600
Facsimile: (404) 842-7633
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Attorneys for Defendants (cont’d from previous page)

William Nortman

Wayne Schwartz

Atlas, Pearlman, Trop & Borkson, P.A.
Suite 1700

350 East Las Olas Boulevard

Fort Lauderdale, FL 33301

Cirino Bruno

Martin Kaplan

Gusrae, Kaplan & Bruno
120 Wall street

New York, NY 10005

Wayne Hartke
7637 Leesburg Pike
Falls Church, VA 22043



